
CABINET MEMBER FOR COMMUNITIES AND COHESION 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham.  S60  
2TH 

Date: Monday, 22nd July, 2013 

  Time: 11.30 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with Part 1 (as amended March 2006) of Schedule 
12A to the Local Government Act 1972.  

  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for absence.  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest.  
  

 
5. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 24th June, 2013. (Pages 1 - 4) 
  

 
6. Nominations to Outside Bodies/Membership of Panels/Sub Groups etc - 2013-

2014. (Pages 5 - 7) 
  

 
7. Update on the creation of the Rotherham Integrated Youth Support Service. 

(Pages 8 - 44) 
  

 
8. Community Leadership Fund, 2012-2013. (Pages 45 - 62) 
  

 
9. Date and time of the next meeting: -  

 
 

• Monday 23rd September, 2013, to start at 12.00 noon in the Rotherham 
Town Hall.   

 

 



35E COMMUNITIES AND COHESION - 24/06/13 

 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR COMMUNITIES AND COHESION 
24th June, 2013 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Hussain (in the Chair) and Councillors Wallis and Burton. 

 

E1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 

 There were no Declarations of Interest to record.   
 

E2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 29TH APRIL, 2013.  
 

 The minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Cohesion held on 29th April, 2013, were considered.   
 
In relation to Minute No. E55 (Restorative Justice – Waiving of Standing 
Orders) it was requested that the Minute be amended to read that the 
‘Rotherham Integrated Youth Support Service’ operated the contract for 
restorative justice support.   
 
Resolved: -  That with the amendment above, the minutes of the previous 
meeting of the Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion be agreed 
as an accurate record for signature by the Cabinet Member.   
 

E3. SINGLE INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT - PRESENTATION.  
 

 The Cabinet Member welcomed colleagues from the Voluntary and 
Community Sector (VCS), Shafique Hussain, Peter Foyle and Julie 
Adamson.  Shafique, Peter and Julie had been invited to the meeting 
along with the Community Engagement Manager (Neighbourhood and 
Adult Services) to report on the actions of the Rotherham (VCS) 
Infrastructure Network (RIN).  In particular, an update would be provided 
on the Single Infrastructure Grant that the VCS RIN received including:-   
 

• An overview of the voluntary and community sector in Rotherham 
was provided; 

• The benefits and contributions provided by the voluntary and 
community sector; 

• The role of the VCS Infrastructure in supporting, information, 
training, advice and guidance to the estimated 1,500 voluntary and 
community organisations in Rotherham;  

• The Rotherham VCS worked collaboratively to ensure that 
representation of the 1,500 organisations was representative;  

• Key delivery areas of the VCS Infrastructure included: volunteer co-
ordination, services support, service development and voice, 
engagement and representation. 

 
In the financial year 2012/13, the Rotherham Infrastructure Network had: -  
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



COMMUNITIES AND COHESION - 24/06/13 36E 

 

 

Volunteering: - 
 

• Brokered and supported 1,342 new volunteers; 

• Seen an increase in the number of groups registered; 

• Produced a Rotherham volunteer strategy;  

• Provided volunteer training and support for pathways into work; 

• Co-ordinated/contributed to support for key events and activities. 
 
Services Support: -  
 

• Provided comprehensive weekly email bulletins;  

• Used GISMO to promote all services Borough; 

• Undertook organisational training and capacity building; 

• Assisted 302 groups to make 721 funding searches;  

• 7 organisations had received specific tailored funding advice and 
guidance; 

• Facilitated rural community building sessions and Yorkshire 
community venues website; 

• Worked with Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) representative 
groups to target funding opportunities; 

• Worked with the Disability Network; 

• Direct Payments and BME families research; 

• Mosque training; 

• Interfaith events. 
 
Service Development: -  
 

• Supported the implementation of the Financial Inclusion Strategy; 

• Provided/facilitated financial capability training; 

• Facilitated VCS Information and Collaboration Sessions; 

• Targeted initiatives for BME organisations and communities, 
including supporting communities to access Services and 
provision, and identification of and addressing market gaps. 

 
Voice, Engagement and Representation: -  
 

• Undertaken recruitment and selection of strategic VCS 
representatives on Rotherham Partnerships and Boards, including 
the Local Social Partnership, Safer Futures Community Network 
and the Health and Wellbeing Board; 

• Had a VCS group membership in excess of 620 individuals;  

• Contributed to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy; 

• Contributed to community cohesion and awareness raising work.  
 
Case studies where the VCS had brokered individuals into full-time, stable 
employment were considered.  The individuals had been matched to 
access placements for volunteering opportunities and had come from 
baselines of long-term unemployment and did not have qualifications.  
Rotherham VCS had helped the individuals to gain employment skills and 

Page 2



37E COMMUNITIES AND COHESION - 24/06/13 

 

 

access qualifications, which had supported them to the next step of 
developing contacts and pursuing opportunities.   
 
During the 2012/13 financial year, the RIN had helped Rotherham groups 
to secure £4million of funding.   
 
Discussion ensued on the production of the RIN’s annual report to 
publicise the impacts of the organisation and demonstrate the use and 
impact of the Single Infrastructure Grant, and how this grant enabled the 
RIN to support VCS groups to contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan.  
The Cabinet Member asked that quantitative figures be inserted into the 
report to demonstrate the progress that had been achieved.   
 
Resolved: -  That the information shared be noted.   
 

E4. ROTHERHAM'S INTEGRATED YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICE - 
UPDATE.  
 

 The Head of the Rotherham Integrated Youth Support Service (Schools 
and Lifelong Learning, Children and Young People’s Services) provided 
an update against the project plan on the development of the Integrated 
Youth Support Service for Rotherham.  
 
Further to Minute No. E54 (Update on the creation of the Rotherham 
Integrated Youth Support Service) of the Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Cohesion held on 29th April, 2013, recent progress now 
reported included: -  
 
 

• The recruitment process to the Service’s structure had been 
concluded and interviews to 120 posts had taken place; 

• It was now envisaged that a much smaller number of posts would 
be made redundant from the structure; 

• The soft launch of the Service would take place on the week 
beginning 8th July.  Local relationships had been maintained as far 
as possible, and where changes were unavoidable, transition and 
support had been arranged for young people who would 
experience changes in their key workers; 

• The official launch of the Service had been planned for the week 
beginning 22nd July.  The official opening of the town centre base 
would take place during the week, and town centre events would 
take place to promote the re-launched Service; 

• A Communications Strategy for all stakeholders had been 
produced, and would address the needs of each group; 

• A new cohort of apprentices would join the Service in September, 
2013; 

• Development work had taken place on the Youth Offer website; 

• All Area Teams were in place and were operating with a strong 
core to ensure that the needs of local areas were addressed and 
satisfied; 

Page 3



COMMUNITIES AND COHESION - 24/06/13 38E 

 

 

• All Area Teams would have local Plans in place by 1st September, 
2013, incorporating the statutory and local requirements, and 
would include the role of local infrastructure and governance and 
all local stakeholders;  

• Joint working was continuing with partners, including Public Health 
and Child and Adolescent Mental Health Teams (CAMHS); 

• Required savings had been achieved through the restructure; 

• Work was continuing on the Service’s Transport Strategy.  
 
Resolved: -  (1) That the information shared be noted.  
 
(2)  That the Cabinet Member receive further updates in relation to the 
progress and development of the Rotherham Integrated Youth Support 
Service.  
 

E5. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING: -  
 

 Resolved: -  That the next meeting of the Cabinet Member for Community 
and Cohesion take place on Monday 22nd July, 2013, commencing at 
12.00 Noon in the Rotherham Town Hall.   
 

 

Page 4



 

 

 
 
 

1.  
Meeting: Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion 

2.  
Date: 22nd July, 2013  

3.  
Title: Nominations to Outside Bodies/Membership of 

Panels/Sub Groups etc – 2013/14 

4.  
Directorate: Chief Executive’s Directorate 

 
 
5. Summary 
 
The Cabinet Member is requested to review the nominations to Outside Bodies and 
memberships on Panels/Sub-groups for the 2013-2014 Municipal Year. 
 
6. Recommendation:- 
 
That the Cabinet Member considers nominations/memberships for 2013-2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 6Page 5



 

 

 
7. Proposals and Details 
 
A list of outside organisations, and the Council’s Sub-groups/Panels etc is attached. 
 
 
8. Finance 
 
Costs associated with attendance, travel and subsistence allowance. 
 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Continuation of Council business. 
 
Representation of Rotherham Council on outside bodies. 
 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
Memberships will relate to the Council’s Corporate Priorities.   
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Appendix A – proposed list of nominations to Outside Bodies & list of memberships 
of Sub-groups/Panels etc 
 
 
 
Contact Name:-  Hannah Etheridge, Democratic Services Officer, Legal and 
Democratic Services, Chief Executive’s Directorate 
 
Email:- hannah.etheridge@rotherham.gov.uk  
Tele:-  01709 (8)22055 

Page 6



 

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE COUNCIL ON OUTSIDE BODIES MUNICIPAL 

YEAR 2013-2014.   

 
 

For determination by the Cabinet Member for Communities and 
Cohesion -  Councillor Hussain 
 
LGYH - LOCAL AUTHORITY COMMISSION ON ASYLUM AND MIGRATION 

Councillor Hussain, Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion 
 

MOSQUE LIAISON GROUP 

Councillor Hussain, Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion  
 

NRF COMMISSIONING FRAMEWORK 

Councillor Hussain, Cabinet Member for Communities and  Cohesion  
 
ROTHERHAM CITIZEN’S ADVICE BUREAU – Trustee Board 

To be confirmed, Adviser, Communities and Cohesion 
 
ROTHERHAM DIVERSITY FESTIVAL STEERING GROUP 

Waheed Akhtar, Community Engagement Officer 
 
RMBC/BME LIAISON GROUP 

Councillors Ali, Hussain and Sharman 
 
SOUTH YORKSHIRE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION – ROTHERHAM ADVISORY 

GROUP 

Councillor Hussain, Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion plus the serving 
Mayor (2013), Councilor J. Foden 
 

WOMEN’S STRATEGY GROUP 

To be confirmed, Adviser, Communities and Cohesion 
 
CORPORATE EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY STEERING GROUP 

Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion: - Councillor Hussain 
 
NRF COMMISSIONING FRAMEWORK 

Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion: - Councillor Hussain  
Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods – Councillor McNeely 
 
RMBC/BME LIAISON GROUP 

Councillors Ali, Hussain and Sharman  
 
RMBC/VAR LIAISON GROUP 

Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion: - Councillor Hussain 
To be confirmed, Adviser for Communities and Cohesion 
Councillor Currie, Chair, Self-Regulation Select Commission 
 
WOMEN’S STRATEGY GROUP 

To be confirmed, Adviser for Communities and Cohesion 

Page 7



 
 
1.  Meeting:- Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion. 

2.  Date:- 22nd July 2013 

3.  Title:- An update on the development of the IYSS Service 
Specification. 

4.  Directorate:- Schools and Lifelong Learning CYPS. 

 
5. Summary 
 
A key outcome of the Integrated Youth Support Service restructure has been the creation 
of the Service Specification. The Specification has been developed in partnership with the 
RMBC Commissioning Service. The Specification document (see Appendix 1) contains an 
overview of the core business of IYSS and information of how the work will be 
implemented operationally 
 
The purpose of this report is to present the IYSS Service Specification to Elected 
Members for information and feedback. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
That the Cabinet Member for Community and Cohesion receive the Service Specification 
for information and also provide feedback on its contents  
 
7. Proposals and Details 
 
This is covered within the attached document. 
 
8. Finance 
 
All budgetary considerations re this project have been fully met. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
A failure to complete and implement a robust Service Specification would impede the 
effective delivery of provision to young people in Rotherham. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The Local Authority has a statutory role in implementing raising of the participation age 
(RPA) in terms of both ensuring a September offer of learning to all young people aged 
16-18 , influencing the development of provision to meet the needs of young people in 
their locality providing support to young people NEET and tracking outcomes for the 16-19 
cohort.   
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 7Page 8



Rotherham is currently experiencing the highest youth unemployment figures for 16-25 
year olds but has sustained performance with 16 -18 year olds. There is a risk that 16-18 
year olds NEET may rise as a result of the pace of change.  
 
Rotherham has a statutory responsibility to deliver work to young people in terms of the 
“Positive for Youth” agenda. 
 
Rotherham has statutory responsibilities in terms of delivering Youth Offending Services 
to young people in Rotherham. 
 
The Service Specification is required in order to effectively deliver the above items. 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
“Positive for Youth” D of E January 2012.  
Rotherham IYSS Project Implementation Document and Timeline 2012. 
 
Contact Name:-  Chris Brodhurst-Brown. 
 
Christine.Brodhurst-Brown@Rotherham .gov.uk 
 
01709 822485 
 

 
 

Page 9



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Children and Young People’s Services 

Integrated Youth Support  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Service Specification 
July 2013 

Page 10



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 2 of 35 

Contents 
 

 

 PAGE 

Overview 3 

Integrated Youth Support Service Vision 3 

Service Outcomes 3 

Scope of Service 4 

Service  Model 5-9 

IYSS Local Offer/Pledge 10 

Objective 1       Young People’s Voice and Influence 11-12 

Objective 2       Leadership, Management and Workforce Development 13-20 

Objective 3       Young People are Financially able 20 

Objective 4       Young People keep themselves healthy 21-23 

Objective 5       Young People achieve a good standard of education 23-29 

Objective 6       Young People are not involved in crime or the risks of exploitation 29-32 

Objective 7       Young People live in a safe and decent home 32 

Objective 8        Young People positively engage with their community 33-34 

Objective 9      Young People are kept safe 34-35 

Page 11



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 3 of 35 

Background and introduction 

Overview  

 
The Service Specification for the Rotherham Integrated Youth Support Service aims to 
contribute towards the Rotherham vision of  “Working together to improve the lives of 
all Rotherham’s children and young people”  and specifically in relation to the Children 
and Young People’s Services vision of delivering early help and prevention for children, 
young people and their families and reducing the impact of disadvantage; “Rotherham is 
a place where children, young people and families have access to what they needs 
to enable them to thrive”. 

 
This Service Specification sets out the model, service and performance standards for the 
Rotherham Integrated Youth Support Service, which will see the full integration of 
resources of the Youth Offending Service, Youth Service and the Connexions Service, 
which, alongside other services and stakeholders, will develop arrangements to ensure 
that vulnerable young people receive targeted support through Universal provision. 
 
The service will be a critical delivery component in supporting the partnership to achieve 
positive outcomes for vulnerable young people and will be rigorously underpinned by the 
context of relevant statutory requirements including “Positive for Youth”, Corporate 
planning, the “Four big things” the Early Help Strategy and Operational Plan, the National 
Youth Agency Quality Standards Framework and HR and Finance processes.  
 
All provision will be underpinned by a comprehensive Voice and Influence strategy and 
young people will have access to opportunities for personal and social development, Voice 
and influence and a broad range of interesting and challenging positive activities. 
 

Integrated Youth Support Service Vision 

 
The overall Vision of the Rotherham Integrated Youth Support Service will be a robust 
menu of provision ranging from open access to specialised support enabling young people 
to access what they need, when and where they need it. 
 
This detailed and effective Youth Offer for Rotherham will join together providers from all 
sectors in enabling young people to access what they need, when and where they need it. 
 

Service Outcomes 
 
The Integrated Youth Support Service has been developed around the Early Support/IYSS 
outcomes Framework, with all elements of provision designed to deliver against one or 
more of those outcomes. The service outcomes are as follows: 
 

• Young people are financially able  

• Young people keep themselves healthy 

• Young people attend school and achieve a good standard of education 

• Young people are not involved in crime or at risk of exploitation  

• Young people live in a safe and decent home 

• Young people engage with their local community and local services 

• Young People are able to stay safe 
 

Page 12



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 4 of 35 

There are specific categories of need under each of the above outcomes, which will form 
the basis of the IYSS work plan, and which are fully described within each of the service 
outcomes later on in the specification. 
 
 The Integrated Youth Support Service Outcomes support the priorities of the Rotherham 
Children and Young People’s Action Plan 2013-16 and as such is therefore linked into the 
Health and Wellbeing strategy. 

 
Scope of Service 
 
The component elements of the Integrated Youth Support Service range from Universal 
open access services, through to targeted services that aim to meet the needs of those 
young people who are vulnerable and those with complex needs. The IYSS Outcomes 
Framework is based on the Continuum of Need as outlined below: 

 
The elements of the Integrated Youth Support Service, whilst not necessarily working 
solely within a particular category of need, are mapped out as follows: 
 

Open Access/Universal 
 
IYSS open access curriculum based youth activities 

Vulnerable 
 
IYSS Early Intervention provision 

Complex 
 
Support with restorative justice 
Support young people on reprimand and on final 
warnings 
Support for young people with substance misuse 
problems   
Support for young people excluded from school and 
to re-engage 

Acute 
Youth offending 

 
 

Page 13



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 5 of 35 

All staff will be skilled in delivering a wide range of interventions up to level one or two 
enabling staff to deal with the young persons concern there and then. If the worker felt that 
more specialised support were needed then he or she would identify suitable provision and 
support the young person in accessing it. Most frequently the specialised support required 
would be found within the IYSS but if it wasn’t then the worker would support the young 
person in accessing specialised or external services. 
 

Service Model 
 
The Integrated Youth Support service will be a critical delivery component in supporting 
the partnership to achieve positive outcomes for vulnerable young people.  It will be 
planned and delivered as a key component of the Early Help Strategy prioritising 
preventative support to vulnerable young people in order to achieve the against the Early 
Help/Integrated Youth Support outcomes. The service priorities will be determined by the 
identified needs of the 15 Learning communities with an appropriate focus on achieving 
progress in the eleven most deprived areas.  An extended remit of the service will be to 
contribute to our integrated family approaches such as our multi agency intervention 
Families for Change programme, which supports the most troubled families in Rotherham.  
 
The Integrated Youth Support service model will operate across Rotherham and will be 
modelled as follows: 
 
The Central Hub 
 

There will be three Rotherham Town Centre locations forming the Integrated Youth 
Support Service Hub: 

 

Central Support Base  - Eric Manns Building 

 

The Central Service Hub will comprise of a high quality one-stop shop provision for young 
people based in Rotherham Town Centre, which will be a young person centred 
environment. This will be the base for a broad range of provision, which will be as follows: 
 

Youth Start – Central base 
 
Open access support for all young people according to need; including targeted and 
specialist support in response to those most at risk of poor outcomes and young 
people presenting with complex needs.  This will be through interventions including; 
therapeutic support, counselling, advice, information, health clinics and personal 
support, young people are offered a unique combination of early help and crisis 
support. 
 
Youth Offending Core Team 
 
The Youth Offending Core Team based in the Central Service Hub, will comprise of 
the Court Team, Case Management Team, Accommodation Officer, Drugs & 
Substance Misuse Officer and Re-settlement and Intensive Supervision workers. The 
team will operate borough wide. 
 

Page 14



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 6 of 35 

 
 
Learning & Engagement Core Team 
 
The Learning and Engagement Core Team will comprise of Youth Support Workers, 
SEN Specialist Personal Advisors, Post 16 NEET Personal Advisors. The team will 
provide the full learning and engagement offer, including targeted Information, Advice 
and Guidance, and information on choices, opportunities and progression routes 
primarily at young people with Special Educational Needs and Post 16. 
 
Voice and Influence Team 
 
The Voice and Influence Team, comprising of Youth Support Workers, will support 
Voice and Influence across the Integrated Youth Support Service and will specifically 
lead on the support and development of the Youth Cabinet, LAC Council and the UK 
Youth Parliament MP arrangements. 
 
Partnership and Development Team 
 
The Partnership and Development Youth Support Workers will lead on staff 
development, support the development of relationships with the Voluntary Community 
Sector and lead on Equalities across the Integrated Youth Support Service. 
 
The team will include a small team working on LGBT issues, who will lead on the 
LGBT young people’s group and activities, as well as embedding LGBT good practice 
across the Integrated Youth Support Service. 

 
Central Administrative Base – Riverside House 
 
The central administrative function will be based at RMBC Riverside House and will house 
the Head of IYSS, the Managers for the Safe, Partnership & Youth Development and 
Learning service strands, as well as the Business Support and Management Information 
Team. The central base at Riverside House will be available for all staff to utilise as a hot-
desking facility. 
 
Activities Base - My Place 
 
The usage of the My Place building in the Town Centre will be optimised for the provision 
of young people’s activities. 
 
Community Based Provision 
 
The hub and spoke model of service provision will represent a shift towards more 
decentralised delivery, with the spokes of the model having additional resources that will 
enable young people to access provision locally. 
 
The spokes of the model will be in each of the seven locality areas of the Borough i.e. 
Wentworth North, Wentworth South, Rotherham South, Wentworth Valley, Rotherham 
North, Rother Valley South and Rother Valley West. This model maps against Learning 
Communities, Social Care, Area Assemblies and Ward Structures. 
 

Page 15



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 7 of 35 

Each of the seven locality areas will have a multi-disciplinary team that will comprise of a 
basic team model, which is as follows: 
 
Support for young people  
 
The support team for young people will comprise of 1 FTE Youth Support Worker (Youth 
Development). 3 FTE Youth Support Workers (Learning), 1 WTE Youth Support Worker 
(Safe) and 1 FTE Assistant Youth Support Worker. 
 
The support team will undertake high quality interventions either on a one to one basis at 
home or in a Youth Centre or as part of a group within a Youth Centre or school setting. 
 
The interventions which young people receive will be varied and according to need, but will 
be with regard to: 
 
Anti social behaviour 
Offending Behaviour 
Substance Misuse 
Anger Management 
Confidence and Self Esteem 
Healthy Lifestyles 
Bullying 
School Engagement 
Relationships - Family and Social 
Community Cohesion 
Diversity 
Equalities 
Teenage Pregnancy 
NEET support – re-engagement in education and employability 
Access to fun and enjoyable positive activities 
 
Youth work provision 
 
The centre based youth work provision team will consist of 1 FTE Level 1 Youth Worker, 
0.5 WTE Level 2 Youth Worker and a 0.2 WTE Support Worker. This team will provide 
activities within the youth work centres in their respective locality area. These positive 
activities will support personal and social development and in addition, there will be voice 
and influence work and volunteering opportunities for young people. 
 
There will be a detached youth work element in each of the locality areas, which will 
comprise of a 0.7 FTE level 1 Youth Worker, 0.5 FTE level 2 Youth Worker and a 0.04 
FTE Support Worker. The detached youth work team will engage with young people in 
outdoor areas within their localities, offering positive activities and acting as a conduit into 
centre based activities and IYSS support. 
 
The locality areas will each have mobile provision, which will facilitate increased service 
coverage. 
 
The map of Integrated Youth Support Service provision is outlined below, together with a 
more detailed diagram of provision on page 9: 
 
 

Page 16



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 8 of 35 

 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 17



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rotherham North 
 

Winterhill Learning Community 
Wingfield Learning Community 

 
Support Team 

Centre Based Youth Work Provision 
Detached Team 
Mobile Provision 

 

Wentworth South 
 

Rawmarsh Learning Community 
Thrybergh Learning Community 

 
Support Team 

Centre Based Youth Work 
Provision 

Detached Team 
Mobile Provision 

 

Rother Valley West 
 

Aston Learning Community 
Brinsworth Learning Community 

 
Support Team 

Centre Based Youth Work Provision 
Detached Team 
Mobile Provision 

 
 

Wentworth North 
 

Wath Learning Community 
Swinton Learning Community 

St Pius RC School 
 

Support Team 
Centre Based Youth Work 

Provision 
Detached Team 

Wentworth Valley 
 

Maltby Learning Community 
Wickersley Learning Community 

 
Support Team 

Centre Based Youth Work Provision 
Detached Team 
Mobile Provision 

 
 

CENTRAL HUB 
 

One Stop Shop  
 

Youth Start Core Team 
Youth Offending Core Team 

Learning & Engagement Core Team 
LGBT Project 

Voice & Influence Team 
 

Central youth activity centre 
 

Riverside House 
 

Central Management 
Business Support Team 

Management Information Team 
 

My Place 
 

Central young people’s activity hub 
 

Rotherham Valley South 
 

Dinnington Learning Community 
Wales Learning Community 

 
Support Team 

Centre Based Youth Work Provision 
Detached Team 
Mobile Provision 

 

Rotherham South 
 

Clifton Learning Community 
Oakwood Learning Community 
St Bernard’s Learning Community 

 
Support Team 

Centre Based Youth Work Provision 
Detached Team 
Mobile Provision 

P
a
g
e
 1

8



DRAFT 

IYSS Local Offer/Pledge 
 
 
There will be a minimum offer of Integrated Youth Support Service within each of the 
seven locality areas and young people can expect a minimum level of service, which is 
outlined in the IYSS Pledge, which is outlined below: 
 
Promoting personal and social development through activities and opportunities for young 
people aged 10 -25 and offering support where young people need it. 
 
Our vision: 
 
 “Working together to improve the lives of all Rotherham’s children and young people” 
 
Our pledge: 
 
We will: 
 

• Believe in you and treat you with respect 

• Help you understand your feelings and to feel good about yourself 

• Be open, honest and non judgmental 

• Listen to you  

• Understand the issues you face and help you get the right support at the right time 
to make the changes you want to make 

• Challenge discrimination in any form 

• Talk to you in a way you understand 
 
We offer:  
 

• Positive activities and opportunities that are safe, interesting, challenging, open to 
all and sometimes accredited 

• Opportunities to have real voice and influence by being involved in making 
decisions and creating change in your communities 

• A chance to take part in volunteering opportunities 

• Information, guidance, help and support 

• Residential, adventure and outdoor opportunities 
 

 
With additional support if you: 
 

• Need someone to talk to and speak up on your behalf 

• Are at risk of re-offending 

• Want to get back into learning 

• Have a learning disability and are preparing for change 

• Want access to high quality information on choices, opportunities and progression 
routes at 16, 17 and 18 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



DRAFT 

This specification is based on the Integrated Youth Support Outcomes Framework. 
 
Objective 1 – VOICE & INFUENCE CROSS CUTTING ACROSS ALL OBJECTIVES 
 

X Ref 
Requirements PIs/ Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people are engaged in the management, design, delivery and evaluation of the Integrated Youth Support Service 

V&I1 The Rotherham Voice and Influence standards are implemented across the 
Integrated Youth Support Service 

 

• IYSS Voice and Influence Team support and oversee the implementation of 
the Rotherham Voice and Influence standards  across all provision  

 

• Work plan priority for the Voice and 
Influence Team 

• Standards  fully implemented and 
monitored 

• Voice and Influence quarterly reports 

V&I2 All young people are able to be involved in and  influence, the design, 
delivery and evaluation of the service 

 

• Young People are consulted about 
their views of the service and 
changes as a result of feedback are 
fed back into the service and 
documented 

• Young people are involved in 
decision-making structures within the 
service 

V&I3 Young peoples needs and wishes  underpin  the process planning of 
support 

• CAF and Individual action plans 
reflect Young People’s involvement  

V&I4 Each IYSS Area Team to outline how they will deliver Voice and Influence 
initiatives within their annual plans 

• Locality Annual Plans reflect Voice 
and Influence work 

P
a
g
e
 2

0



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 12 of 35 

X Ref 
Requirements PIs/ Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

V&I5 The Voice and Influence Team will support and maintain the Youth Cabinet, 
LAC Council and the UKYP MPs process in Rotherham 

  

• Work plan priority for the Voice and 
Influence Team 

V&I6 The Voice and Influence Team will oversee the development of a robust and 
consistent Voice and Influence structure across Rotherham, which will be 
determined by Young People. 

• New Borough-wide Voice and 
influence structure 

V&I7 Young people are confident that their feedback  will be listened to taken 
seriously and acted upon  

• IYSS ensures that an accessible and easily understood procedure is in place 
to enable young people their parents /carers  to make a complaint or 
compliment  

• Young people should be made aware of the complaints and compliments 
procedure  

The IYSS will maintain an up to date  register of all complaints received, action 
taken and the outcome of any investigation 

 

 

• Compliments and complaints policy 
and procedure   

• Register of compliments and 
complaints 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

1



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 13 of 35 

Objective 2 
 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Positive Leadership 

M1 
Positive leadership is effective in focusing work on and responding 
appropriately to key local and national priorities, and the needs of local 
communities. 
 

• There is a clear focus on continuous improvement, with a robust planning and 
self assessment framework that ensures that development areas are understood 
and addressed, and the quality of provision is improved.  

 

• Learning from positive and adverse outcomes is identified and used to improve 
practice.  

 

• There is a positive and timely response to improve services to national and 
local policy developments, inspection and audit, priorities and improvement 
processes.  

 

• Partners work together to ensure that sufficient resources are provided to meet 
local, national and statutory priorities, and to secure positive outcomes for 
children & young people.   

 

• IYSS representatives attend and participate in strategic forums, with nominated 
leads for key work areas  

 

 

 

 

 

• IYSS Performance Framework 
developed and monitored, driving 
service improvement and quality 

 

 

 

• IYSS lead officer on policy in place 
and evidence of policy development 
and improvement 

• Evidence of partnership working 

• IYSS Partnership Group 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

2



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 14 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Effective Management and Workforce Development   
 

M2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Managers and staff are effective in ensuring that the IYSS is able to deliver 
good quality services and meet the needs of children & young people.  
 

• Managers have the required level of knowledge and skills to provide 
effective supervision of staff and oversight of work.  

 

• Staff, secondees and volunteers are well supervised, trained (including 
thorough induction of new staff) and supported to deliver their work to a high 
standard, within a clear and consistently applied quality assurance 
framework.  

 

• Managers ensure that case records are accurate and timely and clearly 
record the work that has been undertaken.  

 

• Staff understand, own and focus on the priorities of the IYSS 
 

• All staff delivering the service must work to organisational standards, in 
relation to Identification of children in need and have the relevant skills to 
actively contribute to serious case reviews and individual management 
reviews 

 

• Staff training addresses local priorities and promotes development 
opportunities, with training needs regularly reviewed and training plans 
revised.  

 

• All staff have the appropriate knowledge, skills and qualifications to deliver a 

 

 

• Achieve NYA Quality Mark 

• Workforce audits 

• Workforce Development strategy in 
place and reviewed 

• Annual Peer Evaluation 

• Monthly monitoring visit programme 

 

 

• IYSS individual work plans, PDR’s, 
Supervision 

• Workforce Development strategy 
based on local priorities and ongoing 
review against priorities 

• All Staff are trained in an appropriate 
qualification  

• Training audit and staff development 
plan evidences core training and CPD 
for all staff. 

• Annual practice observation 

P
a
g
e
 2

3



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 15 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

high quality service and are offered Continuous Professional Development to 
be able to effectively deliver work in line with Borough priorities. Staff are 
fully trained: 

i) and are cognisant of, and able to apply, Rotherham Safeguarding and CAF 
procedures 

ii) on identifying risks e.g. sexual health, young people at risk of sexual 
exploitation, substance misuse 

iii) in strategies to meet the needs of vulnerable groups (teenage parents, 
young offenders, care leavers, substance misusers etc 

iv) to adhere to IO standards and procedures to ensure compliance with 
processes as set out in the MI manual 

and have access to ongoing continuing professional development opportunities 

 

• The performance of practitioners is reviewed regularly through Supervision 
and Appraisal process 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Workforce development strategy in 
place 

 

Locality working and high quality 1:1 support arrangements 
 

M3 Each Locality area team implements an annual work plan based on 
identified local need 

An annual work plan is developed in each locality area, which delivers against 
the IYSS Outcomes Framework and which is based on identified need within that 
particular area. 

• The locality annual plan will as a minimum meet the IYSS local offer 

• The annual work plan will be developed with the active involvement of all 
local stakeholders, which will include holding a local stakeholder conference 

 

 

• Annual planning templates completed 

• IYSS Local Offer met and exceeded 
in each locality 

• Evidence of stakeholder involvement, 
including stakeholder conferences 

P
a
g
e
 2

4



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 16 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

M4 Referral and access to support arrangements 

Weekly planning meetings held in each locality area, to include: 

• Review of incoming referrals, with service entitlement prioritised as defined in 
the IYSS referral form 

• Undertake an in depth individual assessment of young people that fully takes 
into account the voice, safeguarding and vulnerability needs of young people 

•  Identification of IYSS support required against the IYSS Outcomes 
Framework that includes Voluntary and Community Sector Support and wider 
statutory partners  

• IYSS support packages and programmes of targeted activity to utilise 
provision across defined universal, targeted and complex need services 

• Staff (PRB and H scales) will have a caseload (balanced across staff) 

• Young Person’s outcomes agreed and support plan implemented. Key 
outcomes to be around enjoyment, confidence, social awareness, 
environmental awareness, activity skills, person qualities, key skills 
(literacy/numeracy/IT), health and fitness, increased motivation and appetite 
for learning and broadened horizons 

 

 

• Case audits 

• Annual peer evaluation 

• Monthly monitoring visits 

 

 

 

 

 

• Minimum caseload of 20 young 
people per worker 

M5 Ongoing Support and review 

• The IYSS will ensure that the quality and momentum of work with the young 
person is maintained through regular reviews and of progress and 
adaptations of plans as required 

 

A ‘step down’ approach to working with young people will be adopted, ensuring 
that as outcomes are achieved, young people smoothly transfer to open 
access/universal provision 

 

• Case audits 

• Annual peer evaluation 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 17 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Joint planning and monitoring of high quality services 
 

M6 
The Integrated Youth Support Service understands its roles and 
responsibilities and can demonstrate how it will jointly plan, deliver and 
monitor high quality  services for children and young people in Rotherham 

 

Young People receive a consistent , well managed and planned service  

• IYSS Service delivery is aligned to meet the Authority’s priorities 

• Activities are delivered as part of an integrated service within the CYP 
arrangements, including learning communities   

• Partnership agreements in place with key partners  

Contribute to the Authority-wide strategy for effective transition for vulnerable 
adults 

 

 

 

• Quarterly monitoring information 
presented at IYSS Partnership Group 
for scrutiny 

M7 The rights and best interests of young people  are safeguarded by IYSS 
keeping accurate and up to date records: 

 

• Young people in the Borough who are known to IYSS are recorded and 
tracked on the IO and Careworks systems 

• All staff have relevant IT hardware and software to ensure real time access 
to CCIS system 

All contacts and case work will be recorded on IO system within 72 hours of 
support being delivered 

 

 

 

• Case audits 

 

 

• Recorded within 72 hours of support 
being delivered 

M8 There is an effective QA system in place with clearly defined standards 
and indicators and IYSS  will adhere to organisational policies and have 
operational policies in place including as a minimum the following: 

• Self assessment audit against 
Rotherham standards 

P
a
g
e
 2

6



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 18 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

• Equal opportunities for service delivery, Safer Recruitment and training   

• Adherence  to the Commission of Racial Equality code of Practice  

• Health and safety policy and procedures 

• Record keeping, information sharing and confidentiality policies 

• Service user involvement     

• Risk management   

• Dealing with allegations of abuse against staff 

• Safe working practices 

• Safer recruitment and the SVG - Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act   

• Annual peer monitoring 

• Case audits 

M9 
Partnership working with the Voluntary and Community Sector and 
including local children’s social care, education, health and 
accommodation services, ensures that children & young people access the 
services they need. 

 

• Joint working arrangements, including 
pathways, in place 

• Joint practice workshops 

• Family CAFS outline partnership 
working and effective NAG, NAGb, 
SLAs 

M10 Monitoring reports will be produced quarterly and presented at the IYSS 
Partnership Group for scrutiny. The reports will include performance 
against quantitative and qualitative targets and financial profile  

• Meet targets 

M11 The service will undertake an annual needs analysis with vulnerable young 
people to influence the ongoing development of the IYSS service. 

 

• Report on needs identified by young 
people 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 19 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

M12 The Integrated Youth Support Service promotes equality of opportunity, 
celebrates diversity and challenge stereotypes 

 

IYSS strives to promote equality of opportunity, celebrate diversity and challenge 
stereotypes by developing innovative approaches to delivery that:  

• Extends reach to vulnerable  young people so that the service is accessible 
and responsive to their needs regardless of age, gender, ethnicity, sexuality 
and disability 

• Provides differentiated support that both supports and challenges aspirations  

• Supports learning and training providers to promote equality of access and 
opportunity through positive actions 

• Promotes opportunities to promote community cohesion and bring different 
groups of young people together in a safe environment 

Communicates in ways which are accessible to young people with special needs 

 

 

 

• Annual self assessment of Equality 
and Diversity plan against RMBC 
standards 

• Annual development plan on reach 
and impact with over represented 
group  

 

• % of young people from BME 
communities in line with wider cohort  

M13 The IYSS Partnership and Development Team will lead on equality issues and 
provide targeted provision for diverse groups of young people, including: 

• Roma Slovak young people 

• LGB young people 

• Trans young people 

• BME young people  

• Disabled young people 

• Young women’s project work 

These groups will provide one-to one support, positive activities, events and 

• Number and of sessions 
undertaken 

• Annual peer monitoring 

P
a
g
e
 2

8



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 20 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

residential activities. 

 

There will be borough-wide curriculum events to raise awareness and promote 
understanding and community cohesion 

M14 The service will promote opportunities for volunteering, youth work training and 
apprenticeships 

• Number of volunteers 

• Number of apprenticeships 

 

Objective 3 
 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people are financially able 

FA1 All staff will have the skills and knowledge to discuss work and money 
(transition to adulthood) with young people and be able to assist young people 
in accessing appropriate finance, money skills, debt, benefits and bursary 
advice 

• Annual workforce audits 

FA2 

 

Youth Support Workers will support young people with developing  finance and 
money skills, debt, benefits and bursary advice 

• Annual peer evaluations 

• Case audits 

FA3 IYSS open access curriculum based youth activities includes managing your 
money and information and advice relating to finance, money skills, debt, 
benefits and bursary advice 

• Annual peer evaluations 

• Annual locality plans 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

9



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 21 of 35 

Objective 4 
 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people keep themselves healthy 

H1 
Implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy through IYSS at 
Youth Start and the Town Centre Hub 
 
To work with colleagues and partners in developing and implementing the IYSS 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Rotherham, through: 

 

• Open access support for all young people according to need; including 
targeted and specialist support in response to those most at risk of poor 
outcomes and young people presenting with complex needs.   

 

• Locality based provision of targeted work with young women at risk of early 
pregnancy and young men at risk of early fatherhood, with particular 
emphasis on the 11 highest deprivation neighbourhoods. 

 

• Undertaking the development and implementation of the Health Bus delivery 
plan.  Delivery of the plan supported locality teams and Health partners. 

 

• Delivering borough wide sexual health youth work interventions within the 
integrated CaSH Service, supporting the medical team working with under 
19’s. Delivery supported by locality teams and Health Bus delivery plan. 

 

• Clear pathways established and communicated across IYSS and Partners to 
ensure access to specialist health and support services. 

  
 

• Appropriate data collation and monitoring; evaluating progress of impact of 

 

 

Contribute to a reduction in smoking 

Delivery of stop smoking support 
(Developmental) 

 
Weight Management 
 
Referrals to weight management 
services (Developmental) 
 
Substance Misuse 

Number undertaken Call it a Night e 
learning 

% staff undertaken more specialist 
substance misuse training against 
DANOS competencies framework 

% of young people who received 
substance misuse education by group 
and individual 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

0



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 22 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

work delivered against the strategy. 
 

• Ensuring the development of the Teenage Pregnancy and Sexual Health 
Strategy for Rotherham and IYSS Health and Well Being Offer are 
embedded within the overarching health and well being strategy for young 
people. 

 

• Deliver borough wide substance misuse universal and targeted interventions 
 

• Deliver emotional health and wellbeing support for young people 
 

• Ensuring appropriate supervision of the team 
 

• Co-ordinating and management of the Hardwear scheme, including provision 
of ongoing training for workers, monitoring and evaluation 

 

• Working 1:1 with young people via self referral and assisted referral 
 

• Locality based group work aimed at improving the sexual health knowledge 
of young men and young women and increasing access to services. Delivery 
will be supported by locality teams. 

 

• Enhancing links with the integrated CaSH service, with a view to offering 
youth work interventions at their RDGH base (GUM) and at the Community 
Health Centre for the under 19 year age group* 

 

• To offer Colleges support in ensuring sexual health and relationship work 
remains a priority within their curriculum*  

 

• Access to help and support around engaging in employment and training 

% of young people identified as having 
drug/alcohol issues and receives an 
intervention  

% of above who are identified as 
having specialist service needs that are 
referred into KTS service 

Evidence adoption of the single 
message for drugs and alcohol and use 
of local resources 

Physical Activity 

Increase in provision of physical activity 
opportunities against baseline 
 

Self Harm 
Identification of self harming among 
young people accessing IYSS 
Number of 1:1 support sessions offered 
Number of referrals to GPs 
 
Under 18 Conceptions 
 

Number  of Young women supported by 
Teenage Pregnancy projects  
Contraceptive advice and support given 
Provided contraception e.g. condoms, 
LARC 
Number of clinics in each locality 
Number of young people attending 
clinics in each locality 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 23 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

 

• Access to help and support for those involved in the Youth Justice system 
 

• This work will add to the current level of sexual health education and support 
provision available both within Youth Start as well as the youth clinics 
operating across the Borough.  

% of staff Chlamydia trained 
 
% of staff Hard wear trained 
 
Emotional Health and Wellbeing 
 
Number of Tier 2 interventions 
undertaken 
Number of positive exits 

H3 
Implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy through IYSS within 
Localities 
 

• Centres/Projects will develop a rolling programme of health-related work 
offering young people the opportunity to increase their awareness of health 
issues and develop healthier lifestyles. 

 

• Appropriate, consensual referrals to colleagues or agencies where 
necessary. 

 

• Provide ongoing advice and support to children and families including the 
delivery of programmes. 

 

• Provide commissioned IAG services to schools, colleges and providers 
ensuring a cohesive approach to information, advice, guidance and support 
for children and young people. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

• As above 

• Annual peer evaluations 

• Case audits 

Objective 5 

P
a
g
e
 3

2



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 24 of 35 

 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people attend school and achieve a good standard of education 

LA1 
In each Rotherham learning community , vulnerable young people who are 
NEET or identified as high risk of becoming NEET are provided with; 

 

 
Individual assessment of their learning and support needs  

i) Undertake in depth  individual  assessments via CAF /CAPIR  

ii) Provide additional and sustained guidance and support to meet the needs of 
vulnerable young people to help them address their barriers to engagement 
in learning,  

iii) Convene  where necessary a multi  agency  meeting/ or team around the 
child/ family to coordinate information and services if  the needs and 
proposed solutions are complex   

iv) Provide a key worker who will undertake the role of lead professional where 
necessary, unless the young person identifies another professional that they 
would prefer to take that role.  As  lead professional act as a single point of 
contact and coordinate the delivery of agreed actions to meet the young 
persons needs thus reducing duplication and overlap of services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The information advice and guidance that they need to make informed and 

 

• Percentage  % of vulnerable(RONI 
) young people supported 

• Number of IDPs completed  

• Number of CAFs completed 

•  Observation of practice  

•  Customer satisfaction survey  

• % LDD 16 –18 / 19 year olds in 
EET equal to wider cohort  

• % LAC /care leavers in EET  

• % Teenage parents in EET 

• Evidence of attendance at and 
contribution to key meetings 
informing development of services 
for these groups 

 

 

 

• Progression into learning at 16 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 25 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

realistic decisions about learning  

i) Work collaboratively with 13-19 learning providers  to ensure that young 
people who have dropped out, or are at risk of dropping out, are provided 
with appropriate  IAG  and are supported to re-engage and remain in 
learning 

ii) All young people of compulsory school age outside of learning or who are 
not attending school identified as vulnerable through the RONI , are provided 
with IAG support and guidance to enter into learning (education or training) 

iii) Work with  learning partners  to support managed moves  to prevent young 
people from becoming NEET  

Support  young people in JWT to access learning  opportunities 

Retention in learning 17 of  those 
identified through RONI  

• Participation in learning aged 17 

Evidence of agreed referral protocols 
and arrangements for joint working in 
place 

 
Additional differentiated support to young people NEET to re-engage in 

learning  

i) Work with wider learning partners and Job Centre Plus  to provide  a 
proactive placing activity for young people NEET   

ii) Promote, and provide individualised targeted  support to young people NEET 
>6 months  to participate in learning e.g , informal learning , internships ESF 
and volunteering opportunities  >16 hours per week  

iii) Identify and advocate tailored employment with learning and apprenticeship  
vacancies to match the needs of individual unemployed young people 

iv)  Mentor   and support young people  with low or no qualifications  through  
Youth Contract  to to enter  and remain in learning      

v)  Support young people in workless families receiving support   from JCP  
ESF providers , via the troubled families initiative and family recovery  

• Increase in learning rate at 16 

• Increase in leaning rate at 17   

• Reduce NEET joiners as a 
percentage of total NEET cohort 

• Increase total leavers as a 
percentage of NEET group 

• Increase percentage of young 
people  actively taking steps  
towards  learning  and employment  

 

16 and 17 year olds  in learning  

• Number of teenage mothers 
accessing informal learning 

P
a
g
e
 3

4



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 26 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

projects  

vi) Actively engage with young people who are NEET and not available to the 
Labour Market and work with wider support services, to support them to 
move into learning  

vii) Proactively move young people towards a learning  destination by supporting 
them to access accredited learning opportunities 

through Children’s Centres 

• Percentage 16-18 NEET 

 
Support with progression planning so that they are able to remain in 

learning until the end of the academic year in which they reach age 18  

i) Work with  learning partners  to support managed moves  to prevent young 
people from becoming NEET 

ii)   Work with partners to ensure that all young people of academic age 16  
and 17 eligible for the September Guarantee are provided with information 
and a relevant offer 

• Reduce NEET joiners as a 
percentage of total NEET cohort 

• Percentage  of 16 -18 year olds in 
learning  

• Number of transition passports 
developed with schools  

 

 
Support to access and make successful transitions to Adult Services 

i) Specific strategies are agreed for  vulnerable 18  year olds NEET to link into 
Job centre plus Youth Contract activity and DWP workless families activity  

ii) Specific strategies are agreed for 18 year olds NEET to link into 
Neighbourhood and adult  Services  activity  

iii) LDD young people are provided with additional support (see section 5).  

 

 

 

 

• Partnership Agreements in place 
with JCP, NAS and health 

 

• Reduction in LDD NEET and Not 
Known 

LA2 
Additional support will be provided to young people   identified as having 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 27 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

LDD, to prepare for transitions at 16, overcome barriers and engage in and 

stay in learning, and where necessary make a successful transition to adult 

services 

 
Support delivery and review of statutory assessments   

i) Work with schools and colleges to ensure that young people with learning 
difficulties or disabilities are provided (because of statutory entitlement or 
assessed need) with transition plans from year 9 and Section 139a  at year 
11 (or post 16 if required) 

ii) Review of 139a at year 12 and 13 to retain young people in learning in line 
with RPA 

• Completion of Section 139a and 
reviews 

All  LDD young people with a 
139a have an identified lead PA 

16 and 17 year olds with LDD  in 
learning  

 

 
Young people with LDD are supported to access and make successful 

transitions to Adult Services 

i) Specific strategies are agreed for LDD young people with adult services (e.g. 
Neighbourhood and Adult Services (NAS) and JCP) 

 

 
Support delivery and review of statutory assessments   

iii) Work with schools and colleges to ensure that young people with learning 
difficulties or disabilities are provided (because of statutory entitlement or 
assessed need) with transition plans from year 9 and Section 139a  at year 
11 (or post 16 if required) 

iv) Review of 139a at year 12 and 13 to retain young people in learning in line 
with RPA 

• Completion of Section 139a and 
reviews 

• All  LDD young people with a 139a 
have an identified lead PA 

• % of 16 and 17 year olds with LDD 
in learning  

LA3 
In each Rotherham locality, there is accessible high quality information 

Annual update of UCAS Search and 

P
a
g
e
 3

6



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 28 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

available on choices, opportunities and progression routes, at 16, 17 and 

18 

Apply   

90% of year 11 students signed up to 
UCAS 

IYSS website  developed  

 Vulnerable young people receive impartial and up-to-date information on 
appropriate opportunities, labour market trends and career pathways 

 

• All targeted young people 
supported individually or in groups  

• Practice observation by provider 
and annual external observation by 
the Council 

• Exit reviews with young people on 
case closure  

• Customer Satisfaction survey 

 Vulnerable young people are aware of, and supported to, access the 
financial support available to them 

 

• No of young people taking up Care 
to Learn funding 

• No of young people receiving 
advice/ support regarding Bursary 

 All vulnerable young people academic age 16 and 17 eligible for the 
September Guarantee are provided with information and a relevant offer 

  

 

 

• Development plan in place with 
RMBC and learning providers  to 
implement arrangements to meet 
current Guarantee and future 
requirements for raising the school 
leaving age.  

• 100% 16 – 17 year old young 
people are guaranteed an offer of 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 29 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

learning 

• 98% of 16 year olds and 95% of 17 
year olds receive an offer of 
learning  

 Vulnerable young people are actively encouraged to use, “Apply 
Rotherham” Common Prospectus and Common Application process 

 

i) Support the development of the Common Prospectus (CP) and Common 
Application Process and the delivery  of CP and CAP and brokerage services 
to those both in learning or seeking learning and employment opportunities  

 

• Strategy and plan developed in 
partnership with learning providers  
and RMBC  

• Percentage of vulnerable year 11 
and NEET making applications 
through CAP  

• September Guarantee achieved 

 

Objective 6 

 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people are not involved in crime or the risks of exploitation either as perpetrators or victims 

C1 
Reducing the likelihood of reoffending 

 

The service will work to reduce the likelihood of reoffending and achieve positive 
sustainable outcomes through effective supervision of young people 

 

• Engagement in suitable 
education, training and 
employment 

• Access to suitable 
Undertake an in depth individual assessment of young peoples needs that will 
provide a robust framework for work to reduce the likelihood of reoffending 

P
a
g
e
 3

8



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 30 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

The Court Team will produce good quality reports that promote understanding to 
courts of the young person , their circumstances and their behaviour 

accommodation 

• Number and quality of Restorative 
Justice programmes undertaken 

• Rate of proven re-offending by 
young people (frequency) 

 

 

The service will ensure good quality and timely plans are in place for work that 
meets the assessed needs  

Develop Custodial sentence plans that are of good quality and support the 
delivery of  a well integrated sentence  

The service will ensure that the quality and momentum of work with the young 
person is maintained through regular reviews and of progress and adaptations of 
plans as required 

Deliver an appropriate range of good quality interventions that are designed to 
reduce the likelihood of reoffending 

The service  will ensure that there is active and meaningful involvement in 
planning throughout the custodial phases of sentences, so that custodial cases 
are delivered as a single integrated sentence 

 

 

 

C2 
Protecting the Public 
 
The service will work to manage the risk of harm to others and increase the 
safety of actual and potential victims and achieve positive sustainable outcomes 
through the effective supervision of young people 

 

• Prevention Programme Offending 
Rate Measure 

• Reduction in number of first time 
entrants to the youth justice 
system 

 

Undertake an in depth individual assessment of young people that fully takes 
into account the risk of harm posed by the young person and of victims’ needs 

The service will ensure good quality and timely plans are in place for work that 
maximise the likelihood of actual and potential victims being protected and risk of 
harm to others is reduced 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 31 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

The service will ensure that victims are protected and risk of harm to others is 
minimised through active management throughout the sentence 

Service managers will ensure that there is  positive leadership, which gives 
sufficient priority to work that manages the risk of harm to others  

C3 
Protecting the child or young person 

 

The service will protect young people and reduce their vulnerability and achieve 
positive sustainable outcomes through the effective supervision and engagement 
with local safeguarding arrangements 

 

• Annual peer monitoring 

• Young People’s journey mapping 

• Outcome monitoring 
Undertake an in depth and timely  individual assessment of young people that 
fully takes into account the child protection and vulnerability needs of young 
people 

The service will ensure good quality and timely plans are in place for work that 
maximise the likelihood of young people being protected and their vulnerability 
needs addressed 

The service will ensure that young people are protected and their vulnerability 
reduced  through active management throughout the sentence 
 
 

C4 
Ensuring that the sentence is served 
 
The service will ensure that the young person and their parents/carers are 
meaningfully engaged throughout their contact  

 

• Number of Restorative Justice 
Interventions 

• Number of young people on 
Intensive supervision surveillance 
programmes 

• Number of young people who 
receiving a court conviction and 

Any barriers to effective engagement will be identified and responded to 
 

The service will ensure that the requirements of the sentence are met and, 
where appropriate, take enforcement action following non-compliance 

There will be sufficient attention given to the health and well-being of the young 
person and in particular where this may act as a barrier to successful outcomes 

P
a
g
e
 4

0



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 32 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

from the sentence sentenced to custody 

C5 
Prevention Initiatives 
 
The service will engage with pre-court disposals with the aim of preventing 
further offending 
 
The service will offer voluntary interventions to young people identified as 
involved in anti-social behaviour 
 
The service will offer voluntary interventions to young people at the cusp of 
offending 
 
Each of the seven locality teams will deliver one operation coverage per quarter 
 

 

• Reduction in the number of first 
time entrants 

• Number of operation coverage 
initiatives per quarter 

 
Objective 7 
 

X Ref Requirements Examples of PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people live in a safe and decent home 

SH1 
There is improvement, where relevant, in living arrangements where these relate 
to the likelihood of offending (Youth Support Worker (Accommodation)) 

 

• Access to suitable accommodation 
numbers 

SH2 All staff will have the skills and knowledge to be able provide young people with 
advice and information with regards to accessing safe and decent 
accommodation 

• Annual workforce training audit 

P
a
g
e
 4

1



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 33 of 35 

Objective 8 
 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people positively engage with their community and local services 

P1 The IYSS Youth Workers (Locality) will be responsible for engaging with all 
young people in their area and for co-ordinating the delivery of open access 
activities across their area.   

 

• Level of engagement as a 
percentage of YP population 

• Locality annual plans 

• Annual peer evaluations 

P2 Open access and mobile/detached activities will be delivered in line with the 
IYSS Curriculum key priorities, including child sexual exploitation, anti-social 
behaviour, domestic abuse, safeguarding, healthy lifestyle, housing issues, self 
esteem, health, enterprise, anger management, life skills, money and finance, 
literacy, drugs and alcohol and offending based behaviour. 

• Annual peer evaluation 

• Monthly curriculum reports 

• 60 of the  13-19 of participants per 
unit with an accredited outcome 

P3 Open access and mobile/detached activities will be delivered in line with young 
peoples needs within each specific area, based on area annual plans. This will 
include:  

• Project work 

• One-to-one support 

• Voice and Influence projects 

• Events 

• Residential activities 

• Summer provision 

• Anti-Social Behaviour provision 

 

 

• 20% of 11-25 population as 
contacts 

• 30% of 13-19 population as 
contacts 

• 15% of 15-19 population as 
participants 

• 60% of 13-19 of participants with 
a recorded outcome 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

2



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 34 of 35 

X Ref Requirements PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

• Partnership working – including Schools and Community Groups 

P4 There will be a minimum of four nights per week centre-based activities in each 
of the IYSS youth activity centres 

 

• Number of sessions by locality 

P5 There will be a minimum of four nights per week mobile and 4 nights per week 
detached work sessions in each of the areas 

• Number of sessions by locality 

 

Objective 9 

 

X Ref Requirements Examples of PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

Young people are kept safe 

S1 All staff have the skills and knowledge to be able to identify the possible signs of 
abuse and neglect being suffered by a young person and know what to do 

• Annual workforce training audit 

S2 All staff have the skills and knowledge to be able to identify the possible signs of 
Child Sexual Exploitation and know what to do 

• Annual workforce training audit 

S2 IYSS staff will contribute to and lead on Family CAFs and CAFs • Bi-annual peer evaluation 

• Case audits 

S3 IYSS contributes towards community safety initiatives, including Voice and 
Influence work with young people around personal safety 

• Annual locality plans 

P
a
g
e
 4

3



DRAFT 

 
 

Page 35 of 35 

X Ref Requirements Examples of PIs / Impact Measures 

What the service will look like 
Evidence the Council needs to show 

requirements have been achieved 

S4 IYSS to provide support packages as part of the Families for Change Initiative 

 

• Bi-annual peer evaluation 

• Case audits 

S5 

 

Work with girls and young women around safe and healthy relationships • Number of interventions  

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

4



 

 
 

1. Meeting: Cabinet Member for Communities and Cohesion 
 

2. Date: 22nd July, 2013 

3. Title: Community Leadership Fund 2012/13 

4. Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 

 
 
5.  Summary 
 
This report provides confirmation of the Community Leadership Fund (CLF) total expenditure 
for the financial year 2012/13. 
 
The report also provides examples of the type of activity supported by the CLF, in particular 
related to the key strategic themes of the Council’s Corporate Plan.  
 
A full list of all projects supported during 2012/13 is included in Appendix 1 of this report. 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
That  

• Cabinet Member receives and notes the expenditure of the Community 
Leadership Fund for 2013/13. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 8Page 45



7.  Proposals and Details 
 

The Community Leadership Fund provides annual funding of £1000 to each ward member. 
CLF funding is allocated by ward members to address local priorities, support local groups 
and address emerging issues within their communities. The CLF plays a vital role in enabling 
ward members to optimise their community leadership role, by actively responding to 
community issues and supporting voluntary and community groups and organisations in 
delivering solutions on the ground. 

 
During 2012/13 Members supported nearly 200 individual projects. In addition a number of 
cross ward initiatives were also supported including Rotherham Neuro Support Group, the 
Food Crisis Partnership, Rotherham Hard of Hearing, Open Minds Theatre Company and 
Rotherham Holiday Aid. 
 
Much of the funding is committed to projects and activities that have a direct link with the key 
strategic themes and objectives of the Council’s Corporate Plan. The table below provides 
examples of this:- 
 

Making Sure no Community is left behind 
 
Rotherham Hard of Hearing  Equipment/attracting new users to the group 
Food Crisis partnership    Food for disadvantaged families at Christmas 
Rotherham Autism      Ten pin bowling club for autistic children 
Rotherham Holiday Aid    Breaks for disadvantaged families 
WING  Support services for OAP’s in Wickersley and 

Hellaby 
South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue  Providing courses on healthy eating/lifestyles 
 

 
Helping to create safe and healthy communities 
 
Rother Valley West Youth Forum   Easter Activities for young people 
Laughton en Le Morthern PC             Community walking event 
Clifton Community Partnership   Over 50’s exercise classes. 
Mason Avenue Ladies     Exercise classes for elderly residents 
Safe at Last                                              Promotional material to safeguard vulnerable 

adults. 
Millmoor Juniors FC     Purchase of a heart defibrillator 
Rotherham North SNT                             Mountain bike equipment for local police patrols 

Improving the environment 
 
Casting Innovations     School recycling projects in Canklow and 
Dinnington. 
Hellaby Project      Plants for village flowerbeds 
Brampton Ellis Primary School  Dog fouling signs for West Melton park using pupils 

designs. 
Wentworth Valley Area Assembly  Clean up equipment for Manor fields. 
Friends of Ulley Country Park  Tables for the visitor centre to increase visitor 

numbers. 
KP Community Partnership                     Hampstead Green improvements gardening project. 
 

 Ensuring quality education for all 
 

Page 46



Hillcrest Early Years               Outdoor writing daises to encourage fine motor 
skills 
Anston Pre School                Small world learning resources 
Woodsetts Primary School              Plants for school sensory garden. 
Canklow Woods Primary School Local democracy newsletter to encourage 

engagement with young people 
Maltby Youth Centre   Sending young people on a national citizenship      

service programme. 
Monkwood Primary School              Purchasing awards for school attendance project. 

 
A full list of all projects supported during 2012/13 is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 
 

A feedback form is completed for each project requesting details of the project outputs. This is 
placed on file with the original funding application.  It is clear from the feedback received that 
the CLF has enabled ward members to be well placed to respond to a range of local concerns 
and to support local needs and projects. This undoubtedly leads to positive outcomes and 
relationships with local communities. 

A small selection of feedback quotes is provided in the table below to underline the significant 
difference that sometimes even minor amounts of funding can make:- 
 

 
Hillcrest Early Years, Anston Community Centre, (Anston and Woodsetts Ward) 
 
“The daisy chalk boards enhanced the environment and promoted opportunities for the 
children to write/make marks outside and develop their fine motor skills” 
 
Ann Field, Pre School Manager 
 
YMCA White Rose, Community Eid Party, (Boston Castle and Rotherham East Ward) 
 
“Over 100 attended the event from a wide range of backgrounds. The event brought the 
community together and built links between different organisations working locally.” 
 
Fran Redmore, My Place Business Manager 
 
Rotherham Neighbourhood Watch, (Hellaby Ward) 
 
“The grant is very welcome income for our group and we have more members attending now  
than ever. We work very closely with the police and this has helped get more information out  
to the community” 
 
Joan Foxton, Treasurer, Rotherham Neighbourhood Watch 
 
Kimberworth Park Community Partnership, Trip to the seaside for low income 
families, (Keppel, Wingfield and Rotherham West Wards) 
 
“Many families are feeling the impact of the recession and because of the difficult economic 
crisis and its effects on local people we would like to revive a tradition of taking children out 
for the day to the coast. A great day out was had by all”. 
 
Gail Ansell, Company Administrator. 
 
 

Page 47



High Street Centre, Rawmarsh, Young People Three Peaks Challenge, (Rawmarsh 
Ward) 
 
“The funding allowed the High Street Centre to transport a group of local young people to the 
Yorkshire Dales to complete the 3 Peak Challenge. The young people said they were proud 
of what they had done and enjoyed being part of a team” 
 
Caroline Langston, Centre Development Manager 
 
Rotherham United Community Sports Trust,  Young Peoples Workshops, (Rotherham 
East and Rotherham West Wards) 
 
“The event raised awareness of crime and it’s consequences along with safety on the 
internet. The event was attended by 20 young people from Wath, Eastwood and Ferham and 
supported by the Police and two local housing associations” 
 
Mark Cummins, Cohesion Officer.  
 
Herringthorpe Valley Youth Centre, Summer programme of activities for young 
people, (Valley Ward) 
 
“The grant enabled young people that access the unit to engage in activities otherwise alien 
to them. It encouraged and developed community cohesion increasing the positive profile of 
young people. The grant contributed to an increase in centre users” 
 
Matt Ellis, Youth Worker 
 

 
To further highlight the value of the Community Leadership Fund this year, ward members 
have had the opportunity to list the projects they have supported on their own individual 
information pages on the Councils website. This is regularly updated by the Community 
Liaison Officer within the Area Partnership Team. It is hoped to develop this further in the 
future to include project feedback and photographs. In addition to this ward members can now 
access their latest spending information and project listings on the Councils internal intranet 
system. 
 
8.  Finance 
 
The available CLF funding for 2012/13, including funding carried forward from 2011/12, was 
£82,620.  During 2012/13 ward members allocated £61,372 of funding.  
 
For the financial year 2013/14 ward members were able to carry forward up to £750 each 
resulting in a carry forward figure of £21,248. This combined with the annual CLF funding for 
2013/14 provides a total fund of £84,248. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The Community Leadership Fund supports grass roots local organisations and the leadership 
role of the Ward Member and is an effective tool available to ward members to directly 
address local issues and concerns.  Any reduction in funding will have a negative impact on 
the community leadership role of individual ward councillors particularly at a time when 
national and regional funding to the voluntary and community sector and is being reduced or 
withdrawn.  
 

Page 48



10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The breadth and diversity of projects supported by the Fund contributes to all five strands of 
the Corporate Plan and in particular to:- 
 

• Making sure no community is left behind 

• Helping to create safe and healthy communities. 

• Improving the environment 

• Ensuring quality education for all 
 
This key theme is reflected within Strategic Objective 5 of the NAS Service Plan 2010-13:- 
 
We will ensure that Citizens are satisfied with their community as a place to live 

 
11.   Background Papers and Consultation 

 
Communities and Local Government Committee: Councillors on the Front Line December 
2013. 
 
RMBC Corporate Plan October 2010. 
 
Contact Names: Paul Griffiths, Community Liaison Officer – Neighbourhoods and Adult 
Services,Ext823159paul.griffiths@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 49



Appendix 1 CLF funded projects by Ward/Ward Member 2012/13

Anston and Woodsetts

Burton

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

South Anston Methodist Church Jubilee celebration

Woodsetts Local History Society photocopier for the group

Street Pastors equipment for the project

Food crisis partnership food for disadvantaged families at Christmas

Open Minds Theatre Company Kashmiri project

Rotherham Samaritans improvements to training room

Network Russia Visit to Russia for Rotherham Scouts

Dalton

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Woodsetts Local History Group new photocopier

Street pastors equipment for the project

Open Minds Theatre Kashmiri project

Food crisis partnership food for disadvantaged families at Christmas

Neuro Support Group Trip for families coping with brain injuries

Woodsetts Local History Group Cartridge for printer

Rotherham Valley South AA Our Futures project

Independent Botanical Soc Artists Materials

sk58 Birders materials for bird boxes

Hillcrest Early Years Pre School outdoor daises

Anston pre school book rack/role play items

Anston History Group sustaining the group

Woodsetts Primary School plants for sensory garden

Jepson

Woodsetts Local History Group new photocopier

Food crisis partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

South Anston Methodist Church Tree festival

Safe in Rotherham promotional material for scheme

Neuro Support Group trip for families coping with brain injuries

Social Outreach Group centenary exhibition

Boston Castle

Hussain

Friends of Clifton Park WW2 memorial in clifton park

Rotherham NAS ten pin bowling club

Friends of Boston Castle promotional material

Canklow Woods Breakfast Club new learning resources

Rotherham Holiday Aid breaks for local families

Clifton Community Partnership Over 50's keep fit classes

Clifton Park Skate Event skate event bonfire weekend

UMCC Xmas cohesion event

Casting Innovations Recycling project Canklow

Friends of Boston Castle Activity programme for boston castle

Bharat Integration Group community dance celebration

Page 50



Mcneeley

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Friends of Clifton Park WW2 memorial in the park

Rotherham NAS branch ten pin bowling club

Friends of Boston Castle promotional material

Canklow Woods Breakfast Club new learning resources

Rotherham Holiday Aid breaks for local families

My Place, Rotherham Eid party

Clifton Community Partnership over 50's keep fit classes

Canklow Woods Primary School local democracy week newsheet

Clifton Park Skate Event skate event bonfire weekend

UMCC xmas cohesion event

Casting Innovations Recycling project Canklow

Safe At Last support project for vulnerable people

Wootton

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Friends of Clifton Park WW2 memorial in the park

Rotherham NAS branch ten pin bowling club

Friends of Boston Castle promotional material

Canklow Woods Breakfast Club new learning resources

Rotherham Holiday Aid breaks for local families

My Place, Rotherham Eid Party

natalie smith tae kwondo olympics legacy

Clifton Community Partnership over 50's keep fit classes

Canklow Woods Primary School local democracy week newsheet

Clifton Park Skate Event skate event bonfire weekend

Street pastors equipment for the project

Open Minds Theatre Co Kashmir Project

UMCC Xmas cohesion event

Casting Innovations Recycling project Canklow

Brinsworth 

Buckley

RVW SNT removal and relocation of Asb cameras

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Groundwork Dearne skate park event orchard

Brinsworth History Group new website

Street pastors equipment for the project

Friends of St Georges flowerbeds for churchyard

Rotherham Holiday Aid breaks for families

Safe At Last support project for vulnerable people

Army Benevolence Fund raising for local soldiers/families

Rother Valley West Youth Team activities over Easter 2013

JHL School of Dance Uniforms for dancers

Ahmed

RVW SNT removal and relocation of asb cameras

Page 51



Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Groundwork Dearne skate park event orchard

Brins and Catcliffe History Grp website

Friends of St Georges flowerbeds for churchyard

Rotherham holiday aid breaks for families

Street Pastors equipment for street project

JHL School of Dance uniforms for dancers

Roddison

RVW SNT removal and relocation of asb cameras

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Groundwork Dearne skate park event orchard

Brinsworth History Group new website

Open Minds Theatre Company kashmiri project

Friends of St Georges flowerbeds for churchyard

Rotherham Holiday Aid breaks for families

Neuro Support Group Summer trip 2013

JHL School of Dance Uniforms for dancers

Falvey

Friends of Dinnington Carnival Purchase of Marquee

Friends of Dinnington Miners Welfare family sports/fun day

Open Minds Theatre company kashmiri project

Laughton en le Morthern parish council community walking event

Rother Valley South Area Assembly Hire of Hall for free dog chips

Casting Innovations recycling projects Dinnington Primary School

Salvation Army Free dog chipping event

Dinnington

Havenhand

Friends of Dinnington Carnival purchase of marquee

Friends of Dinnington Miners family fun/sports day

Friends of Dinnington Mines Half Term Activities

St Josephs TARA coach hire for TARA trip

Casting Innovations recycling project for Dinnington Primary School

Salvation Army easter swimming activities

Tweed

Friends of Dinnington Carnival purchase of marquee

Friends of Dinnington miners family fun/sports day

Salvation Army trip to cleethorpes

Laughton Parish Council community xmas walk

Dinnington Area Regen Trust Repairs to community hall

Andrews

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Bramley youth Club residential trip

Rotherham Neighbourhood Watch refreshments at AGM

Maltby Lions Xmas concert for pensioners

Neuro Support Group Summer trip 2013

Page 52



Safe At Last support project for vulnerable people

Make A Memory Save a Memory local fundraising for alzheimers

Hellaby

Donaldson

WING support services for OAP's in wickersley/hellaby

Astbury

Rotherham Scouts towards a programme of summer events

Hellaby project upkeep of village flowerbeds

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Bramley Youth Club residential trip

Rotheram Neighbourhood Watch sustaining the group

Maltby Lions Xmas concert for pensioners

NAS Rotherham ten pin bowling trip

Army benevolence fund fund raising for local soldiers and their families

Hellaby Gardening Group soil improvement/planting

Holderness

Robinson

Mason Avenue Ladies exercise for elderley residents

RotherValley West Youth Work Easter Activities

Swallownest Miners Welfare FC Towards cost of new kit

Pitchley

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Aston Carnival support for the event

RVW Area Assembly gift vouchers for aston springwood school

RVW Area Assembly young peoples transport

Open Minds Theatre Comp Kashmiri project

Aughton Early Years Centre trip to pantomine 

Neuro Support Group Summer trip 2013

Safe At Last Scheme Promotional Material for scheme

Springwood Theatre Group hire of hall for community show

Aston Swallownest JFC new training equipment

Smith

Rother Valley West Youth team summer diversionary activities

Aston Carnival support for the event

Volunteers Forum printing for promo of jubilee event

Neuro Support Group summer trip for people with brain injuries

Hoober

Hamilton

Cortonwood Bowling Club improvements to community bowling green 

Brampton Ellis Primary School dog fouling signs for west melton park

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

RMBC Youth Service Use of Manor Farm CC as youth centre

Holiday Aid breaks for disadvantaged families

Brampton United JFC establishing a new junior football club

Page 53



Brampton Junior Youth Club workshops and activities for the youth club

Roche

Cortonwood Bowling Club improvements to community bowling green

Brampton ellis junior school dog fouling signs west melton park

Make A Memory - Save a Memory Alzheimers society event

Harley Village Partnership OAP trip to theatre

Open Minds Theatre Company Match funding for staging of kashmiri play

Brampton Junior Youth Club workshops and activities for young people

Steele

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Cortonwood Bowling Club improvements to community bowling green

Brampton Ellis primary school dog fouling signs for west melton park

RMBC Youth Services Youth Club to be held at Manor Farm

Brampton Junior FC establishing a new junior football club

Brampton Junior Youth Club activites and workshops

Keppel

Barron

Rotherham Phoenix RUFC Respect pitch barriers

Home Start Rotherham trip for disadvantaged families

KP Community Partnership trip for disadvantaged families

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

KP Community Partnership Contribution towards Architects fees

Kimberworth Park Over 50's indoor bowling/computer course

KP Male Voice Choir hire of a pianist

Holy Trinity Girl Guides Fund raising event

Millmoor Juniors FC De-fibrillator

Kaye

Rotherham Phoenix RUFC Respect pitch barriers

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

KP Community Partnership trip for disadvantaged families

Thorpe Hesley and Scholes Village Show Publicity for the show

KP Community Partnership gardening equipment

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

KP Community Partnership Contribution towards Architects fees

Holy Trinity Girl Guides Fund raising event

Millmoor Juniors FC De-fibrillator

Clark

Rotherham Phoenix RUFC Respect pitch barriers

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Home Start Rotherham trip for disadvantaged families

KP Community Partnerhip trip for disadvantaged families

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

Scholes Cricket Club communtiy fireworks event

Open Minds Theatre Company kashmiri project

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

Page 54



KP Community Partnership Contribution towards Architects fees

Holy Trinity Girl Guides Fund raising event

Millmoor Juniors FC De-fibrillator

Maltby

Godfrey

Wentworth Valley AA birks holt clean up childrens activities

Groundwork Dearne Junior wardens project

Food crisis partnership food for disadvantaged families

Neuro Support Group Trip for families dealing with brain injuries

Maltby Town Council/One Stop Shop Welfare advice provision

Workers Educational Assoc Confidence building course for young people

Rushforth

Groundwork Dearne Junior Wardens project

Neuro Support Group trip for families dealing with brain injuries

Safe at Last support project for vulnerable people

Wentworth Valley AA equipment for clean up manorfields

Maltby Youth Centre National Citizenship service programme

Beaumont

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Groundwork Dearne Valley Skate/BMX jam

Wentworth Valley AA birks holt clean up childrens activities

Maltby Redwood School books for school library

Groundwork Dearne Valley Junior Wardens project

Rawmarsh

Hamilton

Rawmarsh Old Persons Treat Fund loft insulation for community hall

Arcon Place Community Centre community lunch

Rotherham Model Engineers Society repairs to vandal damaged railway site

Neuro Support Project trip for families dealing with brain injuries

Rotherham Holiday Aid holidays for disdavantaged families

Pat A Cake Toys for playgroup

Whelbourn

High Street Centre 3 peaks challenge young people

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Monkwood Primary School school  attendance project

Rotherham Holiday Aid breaks for disadvantaged families

Rawmarsh British Legion new flag for rawarsh cenotaph

Rawmarsh St Josephs FC FA coaching course

open minds theatre company kashmiri project

food crisis partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

Wright

Groundwork Dearne Skate Park Event - Rosehill

Neuro Support Group Trip for families dealing with brain injuries

Safe At Last project supporting vulnerable people

Page 55



Pat A Cake toys for the playgroup

Make A Memory Save A Memory local fundraising for alzheimers society

Rother Vale

Russell

Thurcroft Welfare band improvement to the band room

Treeton Baptist Church community fireworks

Aston Walkers Assoc 40th anniversary celebration

Ulley Parish Plan winter planting

Youth Enterprise Treeton cyber café project

Safe At Last support project for vulnerable people

Friends of Ulley Park Sustaining the work of the group

Thurcroft Welfare band Community Concert at Treeton

Lelliott

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Thurcroft Welfare Band improvements to the band room

Treeton Baptist Church community fireworks

Aston Walkers Association 40th anniversary celebrations

Ulley Parish Plan Steering Group winter planting

Youth Enterprise Treeton cyber café project

Friends of Ulley Park sustaining the group

Rotherwood Residents Centre new mugs and outdoor plants

Thurcroft Knitting & Sewing Club materials for charity sale

Thurcroft Community Crafts coach trip to craft exhibitions

The Friday Club crafts and games equipment

Rother Valley West Youth Team Easter activities

Swift

Thurcroft Welfare Band improvements to band room

Treeton Baptist Church community fireworks

Aston walkers assoc 40th anniversary celebrations

Ulley Parish Plan Group winter planting

Youth Enterprise Treeton cyber café project

Safe At Last support project for vulnerable people

Friends of Ulley Park sustaining the work of the group

Rotherham East 

Ali

Nayi Zindagi trip to house of commons BME disability rights

Rotherham East CCTV Airtime renewed on CCTV in Rotherham East

South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue To provide courses in health lifestyles/eating

YMCA White Rose Eid Party for whole Community

Clifton Community Partnership Room Hire for over 50's keep fit classes

RMBC lighting department replacement of broken camera pocket park

Clifton Park skate event skate event bonfire night

Clifton School Friends Ass 150 Selection Boxes for Christmas Grotto

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

GROW (cross ward - Cllr Beck - Wales To support deprivation within the ward

RUCST To raise awareness to young people/crime etc

Page 56



Kozoku To increase health and wellbeing

St James' Church PCC To support a field trip for young people

UMCC To support a young peoples project re: ASB

Dodson

Nayi Zindagi trip to house of commons bme disability rights

Rotherham East CCTV Airtime renewed on CCTV in Rotherham East

South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue To provide courses in health lifestyles/eating

YMCA White Rose Eid Party for whole Community

Clifton Community Partnership Room Hire for over 50's keep fit classes

RMBC lighting department replacement of broken cctv camera pocket park

Clifton Park skate event skate event bonfire night

Mayors Charity Night Communtiy tickets to attend

Clifton School Friends Ass 150 Selection Boxes for Christmas Grotto

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

GROW To support deprivation within the ward

RUCST To raise awareness to young people/crime etc

Kozoku To increase health and wellbeing

St James' Church PCC To support a field trip for young people

UMCC To support a young peoples project re: ASB

Wallis

Nayi Zindagi trip to house of commons bme disability rights

Rotherham East CCTV Airtime renewed on CCTV in Rotherham East

South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue To provide courses in health lifestyles/eating

YMCA White Rose Eid Party for whole Community

Clifton Community Partnership Room Hire for over 50's keep fit classes

RMBC lighting department replacement of broken camera pocket park

Clifton Park Skate event skate event bonfire night

Clifton School Friends Ass 150 Selection Boxes for Christmas Grotto

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

GROW To tackle deprivation within the ward

RUCST To raise awareness to young people/crime etc

Kozoku To increase health and wellbeing

St James' Church PCC To support a field trip for young people

UMCC To support a young peoples project re: ASB

Rotherham West

Akhtar

Ferham Community Group Golden Jubilee Fun Day

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

KP Community Partnership trip for disadvantaged families

The Unity Centre, Rotherham Health checks, social activities, exercise sessions

Rotherham Utd Community Sport TrustFerham Children's Centre Olympic event

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

Blackburn Community Partnership communtiy halloween/christmas parties

Open Minds Theatre Company kashmiri project

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

Richmond Park TARA Contribution towards Halloween event

Neuro Support Group Summer trip 2013

Page 57



RMBC - STREETPRIDE Ferham CCTV (Camera relocation - Internal)

Ferham Community Group RN Festival - Provision of entertainment for young children

Foden

Ferham Community Group Golden Jubilee Fun Day

Home Start Rotherham Contribution towards Coach Trip for disadvantaged children

KP Community Partnership trip for disadvantaged families

The Unity Centre, Rotherham Health checks, social activities, exercise sessions

Rotherham Utd Community Sport TrustFerham Children's Centre Olympic event

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

Blackburn community partnership halloween/christmas parties

Friends of Clifton Park WW2 memorial in the park

KP Community Partnership Contributions towards Architects fees

Richmond Park TARA Contribution towards Halloween event

RMBC - STREETPRIDE Ferham CCTV (Camera relocation - Internal)

Ferham Community Group RN Festival - Provision of entertainment for young children

Sims

Ferham Community Group Golden Jubilee Fun Day

KP community partnership trip for disadvantaged families

The Unity Centre, Rotherham Health checks, social activities, exercise sessions

Rotherham Utd Community Sport Trust Ferham Children's Centre Olympic event

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

Blackburn Communtiy Partnership halloween/christmas parties

Open Minds Theatre Company kashmiri project

Richmond Park TARA Contribution towards Halloween event

Neuro Support Group Summer trip 2013

RMBC - STREETPRIDE Ferham CCTV (Camera relocation - Internal)

Ferham Community Group RN Festival - Provision of entertainment for young children

Silverwood

A.Russell

Staplegreen Community Centre Jubilee/christmas party & outings

Rotherham Hard of hearing sustaining the group

Kilnhurst Community Resource Repairs to boiler & toilets in Comm Cen

Kilnhurst Community Resource Lantern Parade at Christmas

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

Staplegreen Community Centre Christmas Dinner for residents

Safe at Last scheme Promotional material for scheme

Thrybergh Comprehensive Purchase of an automated defibrillator

P Russell

St Leonards & St Peters Church Harvest Community Social Evening

Kilnhurst Community Resource Repairs to boiler & toilets in Comm Cen

Kilnhurst Community Resource Lantern Parade at Christmas

Staplegreen Community Centre Christmas Dinner for residents

Safe in Rotherham promotional material for scheme

Neuro Support Project trip for families coping with brain injuries

Thrybergh Comprehensive Purchase of an automated defibrillator

Page 58



R Stone

Kilnhurst Community Resource Repairs to boiler & toilets in Comm Cen

Kilnhurst Community Resource Lantern Parade at Christmas

Food Crisis Partnership food for disadvantaged families at xmas

Staplegreen Community Centre Christmas Dinner for residents

Thrybergh Comprehensive Purchase of an automated defibrillator

Sitwell

Gilding

Neuro Support Group Summer trip 2013

Army Benevolence Fund supporting local soldiers/families

Friends of Ulley Country Pk 15 tables for visitor centre

Whiston Cinema Club insurance/pantomine costs

Middleton

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Rotherham Holiday Aid Supporting holidays for disadvantaged groups

Whiston heritage society plaque to mark the old toll booth, whiston

Food for People in Crisis Supporting disadvantaged/vulnerable families

Neuro Support Group Summer Trip 2013

Army Benevolence fund raising for local soldiers/families

Friends of Ulley Country Park New furniture for visitor centre

Mannion

Friends of Ulley Country Park New furniture for visitor centre

Whiston Cinema Club insurance/pantomine costs

Swinton

Doyle

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Swinton Fitzwilliam Mutual Ass Remember When' Old time music event

Swinton Athletic JFC club shirts for junior section

Street Pastors Equipment for Street Pastors

Open Minds Theatre Company staging of kashmiri play

Swinton Athletic JFC Equipment and Clothing 

Wentworth North Area Assembly Funding towards Christmas Tree

Swinton Sports and Health Group Community Art Project

License

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Wentworth North Area Assembly Funding towards Christmas Tree

Swinton Sports and Health Group Community Art Project

Swinton Sports and Health Group Community Art Project

Wyatt

Swinton Library Summer Reading Challenge

Swinton Youth Centre Art  project -  reward healthy food

Swinton Athletic FC To provide shirts for young members

Wentworth North Area Assembly Funding towards Christmas Tree

Swinton Youth Centre Trip to explore different skate parks

Page 59



Swinton Sports and Health Group Community Art Project

Rotherham Youth Dance Specialist Dance Class

Valley

Currie

Warreners Centre Diamond Jubilee Celebrations

Herringthorpe Valley Youth Centre summer activities

Friends of Valley Park band concert in Herringthorpe valley park

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

High Greave Toddler Group Educational visit to Yorkshire Wildlife Park

Trinity Croft C of E School health eating project/school greenhouse

Street pastors equipment for the project

Open Minds Theatre Company kashmiri project

Neuro Support Group trip for people with brain trauma july 2012

Safe in Rotherham Scheme promotional material for scheme

Thyrbergh Senior Citizens Club Bingo/cloakroom tickets

Army benevolence fund raising for local soldiers and their families

Lakin

Herringthorpe Youth Centre activities for young people

Friends of Valley Park band concert in Herringthorpe valley park

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Trinity Croft C of E School healthy eating project/school greenhouse

Mayors Charity Event community tickets for the event

Thrybergh Senior Citizens SC Bingo/cloak room tickets

Safe At Last promotional material for scheme

RotherFed Easter Event for young people

Pickering

Herringthorpe Youth Centre activities for young people

Friends of Valley Park band concert in Herringthorpe valley park

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Trinity Croft C of E School healthy eating project/school greenhouse

Mayors Charity Event community tickets for the event

Thrybergh Senior Citizens SC Bingo/cloak room tickets

Safe At Last promotional material for scheme

RotherFed Easter Event for young people

Wales

Beck

Harthill & District Garden Ass Harthill & District Garden Association Show

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Open Minds Theatre Company kashmiri project

Food Crisis Partnership Food for families in need at xmas

JADE Contribution towards drop in sessions

GROW (cross ward Roth East) To support deprivation within the ward

Watson

Todwick Primary School Sports Kit for School

Army Benevolence fund raising for local soldiers/families

Page 60



Kiveton Park Cricket Club indoor nets, equipment and coaching

Harthill Primary School equipment for gardening club

Whysall

Todwick Toddlers Play area for younger children

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Kiveton Park Colliery Cricket Club Equipment for Club

Wath

Atkin

Wath Festival 40th Anniversary of Wath Festival

Newhill TARA Trip to Coast for Older People

Wath Community Partnership Brass band for town gala

Wath Stars JFC training costs

Wath RUFC trip to RFU trophy final

Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary Great Bake Off

Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary Football Equipment

Safe At Last project assistance for vulnerable adults

Wentworth North Area Assembly Funding towards Christmas Tree

Montgomery Hall Scooter Safety Event

WN Area Assembly Swinton Christmas tree 2013

Wath Youth Integration Service Arts Project

Gosling

Wath Festival 40th Anniversary of Wath Festival

Newhill TARA Trip to Coast for Older People

Wath Community Partnership Brass band for town gala

Wath Stars JFC training costs

Wath RUFC trip to RFU trophy final

Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary Great Bake Off

Wentworth North Area Assembly Funding towards Christmas Tree

Montgomery Hall Scooter safety event

WN Area Assembly Swinton Christmas Tree 2013

Sangstar

Wath Festival 40th Anniversary of Wath Festival

Newhill TARA Trip to Coast for Older People

Wath Community Partnership Brass band for town gala

Wath Stars JFC training costs

Wath RUFC trip to RUFC trophy final

Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary Great Bake Off

Wentworth North Area Assembly Funding towards Christmas Tree

WN Area Assembly Swinton Xmas Tree 2013

Ellis

British Inline Puck Hockey Association Coaching qualification for Y people

14th Rotherham Scouts Repairs to scout hall

Rotherham Pensioners Action Gp Stationery for Group

Holiday Aid breaks for disadvantaged families

Wickersley, Bramley Neighbourhood W To enable meetings 4 x per year

Page 61



Hoddinot

Wickersley Parish Council Diamond Jubilee Celebration

British Inline Puck Hockey Association Coaching qualification for YP

Rotherham U3A To set up a website for Group

Read

Wickersley Parish Council Diamond Jubilee Celebration

British Inline Puck Hockey Association Coaching qualification for YP

Bramley Youth Club residential trip

Streetpride Movement of CCTV Camera

Bramley Sunnyside Infants small world resources

Wickersley Parish Council contribution to de fibb

Wingfield

Goulty

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp Contribution towards Gardening Project

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp Picnic Tables and benches

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp trip for disadvantaged families

Rockingham Community Action Group Public Liability Insurance for Group

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

Greasbrough Youth Football Club Contribution towards costs for maintenance of football pitches

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp Contribution towards Architects Fees

N/A Supported by Goulty & Johnston  supply and instal  Goal post at Greasbrough Public Hall

Kimberworth Park TARA Contribution towards Children's Christmas Party

Rockingham 33 TARA 2 High Vis Outdoor Jackets

Johnston

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp Contribution towards Gardening Project

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp trip for disadvantaged families

Rockingham Community Action Group Public Liability Insurance for Group

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

Greasbrough Youth Football Club Contribution towards costs for maintenance of football pitches

Rotherham North Area Assembly Community awards presentation

N/A Supported by Goulty & Johnston  supply and instal  Goal post at Greasbrough Public Hall

Kimberworth Park TARA Contribution towards Children's Christmas Party

Wingfield B & E College Contribution to repairing existing instruments

Sharman

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp Contribution towards Gardening Project

Rockingham Community Action Grp sustaining the group

Rotherham Hard of Hearing sustaining the group

Kimberworth Park Community Ptnshp trip for disadvantaged families

South Yorkshire Police mountain bike equipment

Rotherham Holiday Aid holiday breaks for disadvantaged families

Greasbrough Youth Football Club Contribution towards costs for maintenance of football pitches

Kimberworth Park TARA Contribution towards Children's Christmas Party

Food for People in Crisis help for people in crisis at xmas

Contribution to Safe in Rotherham support project for vulnerable people

Page 62


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 24th June, 2013.
	6 Nominations to Outside Bodies/Membership of Panels/Sub Groups etc - 2013-2014.
	RepsonOutsideBodiesCommunities and Cohesion

	7 Update on the creation of the Rotherham Integrated Youth Support Service.
	IYSS Service Specification version 6

	8 Community Leadership Fund, 2012-2013.
	CLF Report - Appendix 1


